
 

MINUTES 

WYTHEVILLE TOWN COUNCIL MEETING 

MONDAY, AUGUST 25, 2025 AT 6:00 PM 

     MUNICIPAL BUILDING - 150 EAST MONROE STREET 

WYTHEVILLE, VA 24382 
 

1. MEMBERS PRESENT: 
Mayor Beth Taylor, Vice-Mayor Candice Johnson, Councilwoman Cathy Pattison, 
Councilwoman Holly Atkins 

MEMBERS ABSENT: 
Councilman Joseph Hand, Jr. 

OTHERS PRESENT: 
Interim Town Manager Sherry Corvin, Assistant Town Manager Elaine Holeton, Town 
Attorney Paul Cassell, Deputy Clerk Lauren Bedwell, Director of Public Utilities and 
Engineering Billy Anderson, Public Works Director Kevin Hackler, Computer Operations 
Manager Ron Jude, Police Officer Darren Umberger, Police Officer Nick Anderson, Blake 
Caldwell, Sara Roberson, Jenni Lauria, Bill Leighton, Arthur Johnson, Janet S. Johnson, 
Kerry Eans, Tommy Atkins, Glenda Salerno 

2. RE: CALL TO ORDER  

Mayor Taylor called the meeting to order.  

3. RE: ESTABLISHMENT OF QUORUM 

Mayor Taylor established that a quorum of Council members was present. 

4. RE: PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE 

The Pledge of Allegiance was led by Councilwoman Atkins.  

5. RE: 7:00 P.M. RECESS 

Mayor Taylor advised that for informational purposes only, the agenda includes a 7:00 
p.m. scheduled recess. 

6. RE: APPROVAL OF AGENDA 

Mayor Taylor advised that the next agenda item is the Approval of Agenda. She inquired if 
there was a motion to approve the agenda as presented.  

Motion made by Vice-Mayor Johnson, Seconded by Councilwoman Pattison. Mayor Taylor 
inquired if there was any discussion on the motion. There being none, the motion was 
approved with the following voting results, by roll call vote: Voting Yea: Councilwoman 
Pattison, Mayor Taylor, Councilwoman Atkins, Vice-Mayor Johnson.  

7. RE: CONSENT AGENDA  

A. RE: MINUTES OF THE WORK SESSION AND REGULAR MEETING OF AUGUST 
11, 2025, AND THE WORK SESSION OF AUGUST 12, 2025 

Mayor Taylor presented the consent agenda consisting of the minutes of the work 
session and the regular meeting of August 11, 2025, and the work session of August 
12, 2025. She inquired if there was a motion to approve the consent agenda as 
presented.  

Motion made by Vice-Mayor Johnson, Seconded by Councilwoman Atkins. Mayor 
Taylor inquired if there was any discussion on the motion. There being none, the 
motion was approved with the following voting in favor and there being no opposition: 
Voting Yea: Mayor Taylor, Vice-Mayor Johnson, Councilwoman Pattison, 
Councilwoman Atkins.  



8. RE: CITIZENS' PERIOD 

Mayor Taylor advised that the next agenda item is Citizens' Period. She stated that there 
are citizens listed on the sign-in sheet who would like to address the Council during 
Citizens' Period. She requested Mr. Blake Caldwell to come to the podium and state his 
name and address for the recording of the minutes.  

Mr. Blake Caldwell was recognized and stated that he lives on Walnut Road in Wytheville. 
He noted that he attended the last Town Council meeting to address issues they are 
having with the culvert on Walnut Road. Mr. Caldwell noted that he is attending this 
meeting to inquire if there is an update regarding the Town providing assistance with the 
installation of a new culvert on Walnut Road. He commented that over the last couple of 
weeks, he has been in contact with Interim Town Manager Sherry Corvin and Director of 
Public Utilities and Engineering Billy Anderson. Mr. Caldwell stated that he had an 
informative discussion with Director Anderson regarding some history about their 
neighborhood and the original installation of the culvert. He advised that the Town installed 
two (2) iron pipes that are currently still in place. Mr. Caldwell stated that Director 
Anderson advised him that he has been providing maps to Town staff and to the Council to 
aid in the discussion regarding the culvert issues. He then discussed some research that 
he had performed for his neighborhood in the Flood Database for Virginia. Mayor Taylor 
stated that Town staff has helped the Council understand what is going on. She noted that 
the Council will be discussing this later in the evening in a Closed Meeting. Mayor Taylor 
thanked Mr. Caldwell for his comments.  

Mr. Bill Leighton and his wife Jenni Lauria were recognized and stated that they live on 
Walnut Road. Mr. Leighton advised that they are offering their support for their neighbors. 
He noted that the neighborhood residents met after the last Town Council meeting to 
discuss what they talked about at that Council meeting regarding the culvert issues. Ms. 
Lauria commented that she will send pictures and videos of the most recent flood event, 
within the last week, to Town staff for them to review. Mayor Taylor stated that she feels 
like the residents of Walnut Road have gotten their attention, and they are working to help 
the Walnut Road residents as much as they can. Councilwoman Atkins advised that she 
would like to thank the Public Works staff for the assistance they have been able to 
provide to the Walnut Road residents. Mayor Taylor thanked Mr. Leighton and Ms. Lauria 
for their comments. 

Mr. Arthur Johnson was recognized and stated that the Harrison Memorial Lodge was 
brought up at the last Town Council meeting to possibly be torn down. He noted that this 
building housed the first black beauty parlor in town. Mr. Johnson advised that he was a 
member of the Harrison Memorial Lodge, and that he feels like there are buildings around 
town that are in worse shape than the former Lodge building. He commented that they 
have tried to reach someone with the Grand Lodge in Richmond but have not been 
successful. Mr. Johnson noted that he has their number and that he will try to call them 
again. He stated that he thinks the Town has access to grants that could help with making 
improvements to this building. Mr. Johnson advised that the former Lodge building could 
potentially be used as a Black Masonry Museum. He noted that he thinks that would be a 
good location and building for a museum, and that he does not think it should be torn 
down. Mayor Taylor stated that she is the one who brought this topic up at the last Council 
meeting, however, she did not say that she wanted it to be torn down. She noted that she 
had asked for an update regarding the property, since it is vacant. Mayor Taylor 
commented that Building Official Spraker has been speaking with people from Richmond 
regarding this matter. Councilwoman Atkins inquired if Assistant Town Manager Holeton 
could briefly discuss vacant buildings and homes that are in town, and how they will be 
addressed. Assistant Town Manager Holeton advised that the Town has a series of codes, 
and that some of those codes enable the Town to abate nuisances in the town. She noted 
that the Town has not discussed a specific action regarding this property. Vice-Mayor 
Johnson inquired of Mayor Taylor regarding complaints she received about this location. 
Mayor Taylor stated that she was asked what the Town is going to do with the former 
Lodge building. Vice-Mayor Johnson inquired what the person meant when they asked 
what the Town is going to do with the building. Mayor Taylor noted that she was not sure 
what they meant, however, she told them that it is not the Town's building to do something 
with it. Vice-Mayor Johnson stated that she was not sure how the former Lodge building 
was missed, but it should have been made a historical landmark for Wytheville, due to its 
history. A brief discussion was held regarding the history of the Harrison Memorial Lodge 
and the complaints that have been made regarding it being vacant. Assistant Town 



Manager Holeton advised that Staff has an update for the Council regarding this property, 
and it will be discussed later in the evening in a Closed Meeting.  

9. RE: PUBLIC HEARINGS, REQUESTS, RESOLUTIONS, COUNCIL DECISIONS 

A. RE: TRAFFIC CONTROL REQUEST - GEORGE WYTHE HIGH SCHOOL 
HOMECOMING PARADE 

Mayor Taylor advised that the next agenda item is to consider the request of George 
Wythe High School for traffic control to conduct a Homecoming Parade on 
Wednesday, September 17, 2025. She inquired if there was a motion to approve the 
request of George Wythe High School for traffic control to conduct a Homecoming 
Parade on Wednesday, September 17, 2025. 

Motion made by Vice-Mayor Johnson, Seconded by Councilwoman Atkins. Mayor 
Taylor inquired if there was any discussion. There being none, the motion was 
approved with the following voting in favor and there being no opposition: Voting Yea: 
Mayor Taylor, Vice-Mayor Johnson, Councilwoman Pattison, Councilwoman Atkins.  

B. RE: REAPPOINTMENT AND APPOINTMENT - WYTHEVILLE REDEVELOPMENT 
AND HOUSING AUTHORITY 

Mayor Taylor advised that the next agenda item is to consider the reappointment of 
Sherrie Parks to the Wytheville Redevelopment and Housing Authority (term expires 
September 8, 2025); and, consider the appointment of a new member to the 
Wytheville Redevelopment and Housing Authority to fill the expiring term of Mr. Jack 
Quesenberry (term expires September 8, 2025). She inquired if there was a motion to 
reappoint Ms. Sherrie Parks to the Wytheville Redevelopment and Housing Authority 
for a four (4) year term (new term expires September 8, 2029).  

Motion made by Councilwoman Atkins, Seconded by Vice-Mayor Johnson. Mayor 
Taylor inquired if there was any discussion on the motion. There being none, the 
motion was approved with the following voting in favor and there being no opposition: 
Voting Yea: Mayor Taylor, Vice-Mayor Johnson, Councilwoman Pattison, 
Councilwoman Atkins.  

A motion was made by Councilwoman Atkins and seconded by Vice-Mayor Johnson 
to appoint Mr. Kerry Eans to the Wytheville Redevelopment and Housing Authority for 
a four (4) year term (term expires September 8, 2029) to fill the expiring term of Jack 
Quesenberry (term expires September 8, 2025). Mayor Taylor inquired if there was 
any discussion on the motion. There being none, the motion was approved with the 
following voting in favor and there being no opposition: Voting Yea: Mayor Taylor, 
Vice-Mayor Johnson, Councilwoman Pattison, Councilwoman Atkins.  

C. RE: APPOINTMENT - WYTHEVILLE TREE ADVISORY COMMITTEE 

Mayor Taylor advised that the next agenda item is to consider an appointment to the 
Wytheville Tree Advisory Committee to fill the unexpired term of James Cohen (term 
expires May 14, 2027) or schedule a Meet and Greet Session for September 8, 2025. 
Councilwoman Atkins inquired if anyone knew the applicant, Mr. Derek Williams. A 
brief discussion was held regarding whether the Council members knew Mr. Williams, 
and if they would like to appoint him to the Tree Advisory Committee or schedule a 
Meet and Greet Session. It was the consensus of the Council to schedule a Meet and 
Greet Session with Mr. Derek Williams for Monday, September 8, 2025, at 5:30 p.m., 
in the Council Chambers of the Municipal Building. 

D. RE: APPOINTMENT - WYTHEVILLE RECREATION COMMISSION YOUTH 
MEMBER 

Mayor Taylor advised that the next agenda item is to consider the appointment of a 
youth member to the Wytheville Recreation Commission (term expires August 1, 
2026). She inquired if there was a motion to appoint Mr. Lucas Mabry as a youth 
member to the Wytheville Recreation Commission (term expires August 1, 2026). 

Motion made by Vice-Mayor Johnson, Seconded by Councilwoman Atkins. Mayor 
Taylor inquired if there was any discussion on the motion. There being none, the 
motion was approved with the following voting in favor and there being no opposition: 



Voting Yea: Mayor Taylor, Vice-Mayor Johnson, Councilwoman Pattison, 
Councilwoman Atkins. 

E. RE: APPOINTMENT - WYTHEVILLE ECONOMIC DEVELOPMENT AUTHORITY 

Mayor Taylor advised that the next agenda item is to consider an appointment to the 
Wytheville Economic Development Authority (WEDA) to fill the expired term of Mr. 
Zach Cooley (term expired December 12, 2024). She inquired if there was a motion 
to appoint Mr. James Savesky to the WEDA for a four (4) year term (new term 
expires December 12, 2028) to fill the expired term of Mr. Zach Cooley (term expired 
December 12, 2024).  

Motion made by Vice-Mayor Johnson, Seconded by Councilwoman Atkins. Mayor 
Taylor inquired if there was any discussion on the motion. There being none, the 
motion was approved with the following voting in favor and there being no opposition: 
Voting Yea: Mayor Taylor, Vice-Mayor Johnson, Councilwoman Pattison, 
Councilwoman Atkins. 

F. RE: APPROVAL OF DEPARTMENT OF HOUSING AND COMMUNITY 
DEVELOPMENT (DHCD) DOCUMENTS FOR MONROE STREET HOUSING 
PRODUCTION PROJECT 

Mayor Taylor advised that the next agenda item is the review and approval of various 
Department of Housing and Community Development (DHCD) documents for the 
Monroe Street Housing Production Project. Assistant Town Manager Holeton stated 
that there are six (6) documents that will need Council's approval to move forward 
with the Monroe Street Housing Production Project. She noted that the Town is, 
currently, in the pre-contract period for the Community Development Block Grant 
(CDBG) for the Monroe Street Housing Production Project. Assistant Town Manager 
Holeton advised that the documents needing approval is a resolution to appropriate 
funds from the CDBG; a Fair Housing Certification; a Non-Discrimination Policy; a 
Grievance Procedure; a Residential Anti-Displacement and Relocation Assistance 
Plan; and, a Section 3 Business and Employment Plan. Mayor Taylor inquired if the 
Council had any questions for Assistant Town Manager Holeton. Councilwoman 
Atkins inquired if all the measurements for setbacks, etc. for this project were correct. 
Assistant Town Manager Holeton stated that the measurements are correct.  

A motion was made by Councilwoman Pattison and seconded by Vice-Mayor 
Johnson to approve all six (6) DCHD documents for the Monroe Street Housing 
Production Project including the resolution to appropriate funds from the CDBG; a 
Fair Housing Certification; a Non-Discrimination Policy; a Grievance Procedure; a 
Residential Anti-Displacement and Relocation Assistance Plan; and, a Section 3 
Business and Employment Plan. Mayor Taylor inquired if there was any discussion 
on the motion. Councilwoman Atkins inquired if these documents will be recorded as 
presented. Mayor Taylor stated that is correct. There being no further discussion, the 
motion was approved with the following voting results, by roll call vote: Voting Yea: 
Vice-Mayor Johnson, Councilwoman Atkins, Mayor Taylor, Councilwoman Pattison.  

G. RE: ELECTRONIC MEETING PARTICIPATION POLICY FOR FISCAL YEAR 2025-
26 

Mayor Taylor advised that the next agenda item is to review the Electronic Meeting 
Participation Policy for Fiscal Year 2025-26. Interim Town Manager Corvin stated that 
there have been no changes made to this document, and that it is the same from last 
year. She noted that the State Code requires the Policy to be approved annually. 
Councilwoman Atkins commented that she wanted to clarify that Council members 
who participate electronically are not allowed to have anyone around during a Closed 
Meeting. Town Attorney Cassell stated that is correct, and that paragraph six (6) of 
the Policy states that the member participating remotely shall ensure that no third 
party is able to hear or otherwise observe the Closed Meeting. Mayor Taylor inquired 
if there was a motion to adopt the Electronic Meeting Participation Policy for Fiscal 
Year 2025-26. 

Motion made by Vice-Mayor Johnson, Seconded by Councilwoman Atkins. Mayor 
Taylor inquired if there was any discussion on the motion. There being none, the 



motion was approved with the following voting results, by roll call vote: Voting Yea: 
Councilwoman Pattison, Mayor Taylor, Councilwoman Atkins, Vice-Mayor Johnson.  

10. RE: REPORTS 

A. RE: UPCOMING MEETINGS 

Mayor Taylor advised that the next agenda item is upcoming meetings. Deputy Clerk 
Lauren Bedwell presented the upcoming meetings, as follows: 

1. The next regular scheduled Town Council Work Session will be held on Tuesday, 
August 26, 2025, at 4:00 p.m., in the Council Chambers.  

2. The Joint Industrial Development Authority (JIDA) of Wythe County will meet on 
Thursday, August 28, 2025, at 3:00 p.m., in the Council Chambers.  

3. The Town of Wytheville Municipal Offices will be closed and all services curtailed 
on Monday, September 1, 2025, due to the Labor Day holiday.  

4. The Safety and Events Committee will meet on Tuesday, September 2, 2025, at 
10:00 a.m., in Conference Room A.  

5. The next regular scheduled Wytheville Town Council meeting will be held on 
Monday, September 8, 2025, at 6:00 p.m., in the Council Chambers. 

11. RE: OTHER BUSINESS 

A. RE: COUNCIL MEMBER TIME 

Mayor Taylor advised that the next agenda item is Council Member Time. She 
inquired if Vice-Mayor Johnson had anything she would like to discuss during Council 
Member Time. Vice-Mayor Johnson stated that she would like to encourage all Town 
employees who have continued their education to come forward, so that they can 
receive raises. She noted that she believes in being fair when it comes to raises, and 
she wants those who have completed any kind of continuing education to be treated 
fairly. Vice-Mayor Johnson advised that no other Council person can speak for her or 
make promises on her behalf to anyone. She commented that when she agrees she 
is going to be fair, then she is going to be fair, and that needs to be made known. 
Vice-Mayor Johnson stated she encourages all employees, even if it is just training, 
to come and ask for their raise. She reiterated that she wants to be fair to all 
employees. Vice-Mayor Johnson noted that if other employees are receiving raises, 
then raises are going to be given out and they are going to be fair about it. Mayor 
Taylor stated that she believes Interim Town Manager Corvin has a list of some of 
the employees who have completed training, received certificates, etc. A brief 
discussion was held regarding the various kinds of training, certifications and 
continuing education for Town employees. Vice-Mayor Johnson stated that she 
wants to be careful and make sure promises are not being made explicitly. Interim 
Town Manager Corvin advised that if Department Heads have employees who have 
completed training, they are welcome to bring those to Town Management for the 
Council to review.  

Vice-Mayor Johnson inquired of Interim Town Manager Corvin if she is the only 
individual Council member, or Vice-Mayor, who has been contacting Interim Town 
Manager Corvin asking for Closed Meetings and for the agendas to be amended. 
Interim Town Manager Corvin stated that she is not. Vice-Mayor Johnson advised 
that she wanted to clear the air, so that people know and understand that she is not 
the only individual asking for Closed Meetings or agenda amendments. She stated 
that she is asked to do that, however, she does not do this for her own personal 
agenda.  

Mayor Taylor inquired if Councilwoman Atkins had anything she would like to discuss 
during Council Member Time. Councilwoman Atkins stated that she has some 
concerns about the budget and additional raises not being given to certain Town 
departments. She noted that she, also, did not want Town departments to go without 
equipment that they had requested during the budget. Councilwoman Atkins 
commented that she would like to ask Town employees who have received additional 
trainings to let Human Resources or Interim Town Manager Corvin know.  



Councilwoman Atkins stated that she has been accused of having a young man 
written up and noted that she had no part of that. She advised that she was not even 
aware of it, and that she wanted to clear her name on this.  

Councilwoman Atkins stated that, also, she has not been asking to have things 
shredded. She noted that she wanted to make that clear.  

Councilwoman Atkins stated that she would like for a letter to be entered into the 
record regarding discrepancy and salary adjustment. She then read the letter from 
July 1, 2025, into the record, which is attached and made part of these minutes.  

Councilwoman Atkins stated that she does not mind giving employees raises, and 
that the 30-year service recognition was talked about as a whole Council. She noted 
that she does have a concern regarding raises not being given fairly. Councilwoman 
Atkins inquired about the listing that Interim Town Manager Corvin has, and when it 
was made. Interim Town Manager Corvin advised that the list she has was submitted 
with budget requests. Councilwoman Atkins inquired if there were any questions or 
concerns about this until this letter was submitted. Interim Town Manager Corvin 
stated that she was not aware of any. Councilwoman Atkins commented that she 
would like for the Council to seriously consider the requests that were made in the list 
that Interim Town Manager Corvin has and not just give raises to one employee that 
was promised. Vice-Mayor Johnson stated that the Council may need to consider 
being fair and consider giving a raise to those employees who asked for one. Interim 
Town Manager Corvin advised that she will provide the Council with this list of 
requests. Councilwoman Atkins noted that she, also, does not like that Town 
departments have been denied their request for equipment, either. She commented 
that their equipment is part of their safety. Vice-Mayor Johnson stated that she would 
like for all Town Police Officers to have take home cars, as well.  

Mayor Taylor and Councilwoman Pattison noted that they did not have anything that 
they would like to discuss during Council Member Time. 

Mayor Taylor inquired if there was any other business to be discussed during Council 
Member Time. There being none, she proceeded with the agenda.  

12. RE: CLOSED MEETING 

A. RE: CLOSED MEETING PURSUANT TO SECTION 2.2-3711 (A.) (1.) DISCUSSION 
REGARDING THE TOWN MANAGER POSITION AND PURSUANT TO SECTION 
2.2-3711 (A.) (8.) CONSULTATION WITH LEGAL COUNSEL REGARDING 
SPECIFIC LEGAL MATTERS  

Mayor Taylor advised that it would now be necessary to go into a Closed Meeting 
pursuant to Section 2.2-3711 (A.) (1.) Discussion regarding the Town Manager 
position and pursuant to Section 2.2-3711 (A.) (8.) Consultation with legal counsel 
regarding specific legal matters. She inquired if there was a motion to go into a 
Closed Meeting.  

Motion made by Vice-Mayor Johnson, Seconded by Councilwoman Atkins. Mayor 
Taylor inquired if there was any discussion on the motion. There being none, the 
motion was approved with the following voting in favor and there being no opposition: 
Voting Yea: Mayor Taylor, Vice-Mayor Johnson, Councilwoman Pattison, 
Councilwoman Atkins. (6:41 p.m.) 

B. RE: CERTIFICATION OF CLOSED MEETING 

Mayor Taylor advised that it would now be necessary to certify the Closed Meeting. 
She noted that it would also be necessary to reconvene into open session. Mayor 
Taylor inquired if there was a motion to certify the Closed Meeting held pursuant to 
Section 2.2-3711 (A.) (1.) Discussion regarding the Town Manager position and 
Section 2.2-3711 (A.) (8.) Consultation with legal counsel regarding specific legal 
matters, and that only public business matters were heard, discussed or considered 
by the Council.  

Motion made by Councilwoman Pattison, Seconded by Councilwoman Atkins. Mayor 
Taylor inquired if there was any discussion on the motion. There being none, the 
motion was approved with the following voting results, by roll call vote: Voting Yea: 



Vice-Mayor Johnson, Councilwoman Atkins, Mayor Taylor, Councilwoman Pattison. 
(9:22 p.m.) 

13. RE: ADJOURNMENT  

There being no further business to be discussed, Mayor Taylor adjourned the meeting. 
(9:23 p.m.)  

 

                 
       Beth A. Taylor, Mayor 

 

         
Lauren E. Bedwell, Deputy Clerk 


